
ISABELLA COUNTY 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
November 10, 2011 

 
A Regular Meeting of the Isabella County Planning Commission was held on November 10, 
2011 in Room 225 of the Isabella County Building, 200 North Main Street, Mt. Pleasant, 
Michigan. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  William Dailey, Bob Thompson, Cheryl Jindeel, Gordon 

Gilchrist, Evelyn Kent, Jerry Neyer, Jim Kremseiter, Kelly 
Bean 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Christine Alwood 
 
SUPPORT STAFF PRESENT: Tim Nieporte, Community Development Director 
     Brandy Harger, Recording Secretary 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Thompson at 7:00 p.m. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by the Commission. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Thompson stated that a Union Township zoning amendment needs to be added to the agenda 
as a new number 12 and everything else will be numbered accordingly. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Neyer, supported by Mr. Bean, to approve the agenda as amended. 
 
Yes: Dailey, Thompson, Jindeel, Gilchrist, Bean, Kremsreiter, Kent, Neyer 
No: None. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
Minutes of the October 13, 2011 regular meeting were circulated to the Commission prior to the 
meeting for their review. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Kremseiter, supported by Ms. Kent to approve the minutes as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: Dailey, Thompson, Jindeel, Gilchrist, Bean, Kremsreiter, Kent, Neyer 
No: None. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
LIAISON REPORTS 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Mr. Gilchrist stated that there was one case on the agenda last month 
and again it was in the L-R district, same problems lot to small and project is too big. 



Planning Commission 
November 10, 2011 
Page 2 
 
 
Board of Commissioners – Mr. Dailey stated that the ad hoc zoning committee finished the 
report on zoning and will be submitting it to the Board of Commissioners.  It costs the county 
about $2-$3 per capita, about the same as the six townships without county zoning, but when 
they pay it is per capita above and beyond (not including Union Township).  In the report the 
committee offers three conclusions, (1) continue what we are doing, (2) stop doing zoning, or (3) 
make alterations, by seeking other townships to join county zoning or raising fees. 
 
TOWNSHIP CONCERNS 
 
Jackie Curtis, Denver Township, stated that she has brought up the issue of vacant houses and 
weeds, Mike has done a tremendous job in sending ordinances from other areas, but he has also 
explained that the County would not be involved in this issue.  Why would it not be considered a 
blight issue, because these are foreclosed homes for sale and you can’t even see the for sale signs 
because of the weeds? 
 
Mr. Nieporte stated that the township would have to enforce their own noxious weed ordinance.  
This issue of tall grass around vacant houses is not a blight issue nor is it enforceable by the 
County Zoning Ordinance.  He also explained that staff will assist in helping the townships 
create their own noxious weed ordinance. 
 
Bob Neeland, Isabella Township, none heard. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None heard. 
 
SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
Farmland and Zoning Subcommittee – Mr. Nieporte stated that the committee discussed and 
added some language regarding Ag Tourism using the Ag Tourism State Guide Book.  If the 
board accepts this language staff has the following amendments ready for public hearing: sign 
ordinance reformat with some modifications, ag tourism, and implementation for subdividing 
(zoning amendments 11-03, 11-04, and 11-05). 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Neyer, supported by Ms. Kent, to set public hearing for December 8, 
2011 at 7:00 pm in room 225 of the Isabella County Building for text amendments 11-03, 11-04, 
and 11-05. 
 
Yes: Dailey, Thompson, Jindeel, Gilchrist, Bean, Kremsreiter, Kent, Neyer 
No: None. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Medical Marijuana Subcommittee – Mr. Nieporte explained that the committee finalized 
language at their last meeting, and it was forwarded to corporate counsel.  Corporate Counsel has 
reviewed the language and sent it back to staff, but before bringing it to the full Planning 



Planning Commission 
November 10, 2011 
Page 3 
 
Commission staff would like the subcommittee to hold another meeting to discuss what 
Corporate Council has sent back. 
 
GILMORE TOWNSHIP FARMLAND AGREEMENT 
 
Mr. Nieporte stated that this request is for an 80 acre parcel in Section 33 of Gilmore Township 
owned by DeVos Farms, LLC.  The property is zoned Restrictive Agriculture (AG-1) and is 
designated as Agricultural Conservation (AC) in the County Master Plan.  The application 
appears to be complete and staff has no concerns with the request. 
 
It was the consensus of the board that they had no concerns with the applications and a 
recommendation of approval of the agreements should be forwarded to the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
NOTTAWA TOWNSHIP FARM LAND AGREEMENT 
 
Mr. Nieporte stated that this request is for an 80 acre parcel in Section 10 of Nottawa Township 
owned by Dale Wawersik.  The property is zoned AG-1 and is designated as AC in the County 
Master Plan.  The application appears to be complete and staff has no concerns with the request.   
 
It was the consensus of the board that they had no concerns with the applications and a 
recommendation of approval of the agreements should be forwarded to the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
COE TOWNSHIP FARMLAND AGREEMENTS 
 
Mr. Nieporte stated that the first request is for a 78 acre parcel in Section 26 of Coe Township 
owned by Mark McDonald.  The Township has this property zoned Agricultural and is 
designated as Agricultural in their Master Plan.  The application appears to be complete and staff 
has no concerns with the request.   
 
It was the consensus of the board that they had no concerns with the applications and requested 
staff forward the information to the Coe Township Board. 
 
The following requests are from North Valley Farms.  The Township has all of these parcels 
zoned Agricultural and all are designated as Agricultural in their Master Plan.  The applications 
appear to be complete (except as noted in regards to structures on the property) and staff has no 
concerns with the request. 

 

 65.11 acre parcel in Section 2. 
 40 acre parcel in Section 2. (existing structure not indicated on application) 
 155.72 acre parcel in Section 2. 
 40 acre parcel in Section 11. (existing structures not indicated on application) 
 77 acre parcel in Section 12. (existing structures not indicated on application) 
 76.77 acre parcel in Section 12. 
 100 acre parcel in Section 13. 
 78.6 acre parcel in Section 13. 
 119 acre parcel in Section 13. 



Planning Commission 
November 10, 2011 
Page 4 
 

 77 acre parcel in Section 14. 
 5.55 acre parcel in Section 15. 

 
Mr. Gilchrist asked the parcel of 5.55 acres was too small to be put in the PA116 program. 
 
Mr. Nieporte stated that a parcel has to be a minimum of five acres. 
 
Mr. Neyer stated that as a side note he checked with Farm Bureau and they stated that the PA116 
program will be continued, in what form they are unsure at this point. 
 
It was the consensus of the board that they had no concerns with the applications and requested 
staff forward the information to the Coe Township Board. 
 
 
UNION TOWNSHIP ZONING AMENDMENT 
Mr. Nieporte stated that this zoning amendment involves a conversion from an R-2A to an R-3A 
category.  It is located in the proximity of Deerfield and Crawford Roads.  There is a fraternity 
house that is going to be built on this property.  Staff has no concerns with this rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Dailey stated that Dan Detzloff of Union Township had concerns with not receiving 
notification of this Zoning Amendment. 
 
Mr. Nieporte stated that the township posted the notice in the paper as required and also sent 
notice to those within 300’, as indicated by the red circle on the map. 
 
It was the consensus of the board to forward this information to the Union Township Board. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None heard. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS 
 
None heard. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Gilchrist stated that he would like to see the board add urban farming into the ordinance. 
 
Mr. Thompson stated that he would like the Ag subcommittee to look at urban farming. 
 
Mr. Bean stated that the subcommittee would discuss it at their next meeting. 
 
Mr. Thompson stated that he will be retiring from the Farm Services Agency and an open house 
will be held on November 29th from 1-4 pm. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



Planning Commission 
November 10, 2011 
Page 5 
 
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 7:44 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Christine Alwood, Secretary  
 
 
Brandy Harger, Recording Secretary 


